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Church Hill School
Comal éounty Texas
(cirda 1870)

The early settlers on the east side of the Guadalupe
River were as interested in providing good schools for their
children as were their countrymen on the west bank of the
river in the village of New Braunfels, So the people of the
Hortontown and Nelighborsville communities bznded together and
in 1850 organized the Evangelical Lutheran Church of St. Mar-
tin. In order to do this, a location was needed, so J.,de
Cordova in 1853 deeded a parcel of land known as lot 16 (13
miles east of New Braunfels in the community of Neighborsville)
to the congregation to be used for church and school purposes.
The property was in the hands of the St. MartinS congregation
and their successors until 1958 when the then trustees deeded
the property which now included said lot 16 of 2 acres and
an additional lot known as 17 consisting of 7 acres, more or
less, (County records showing that in 1896, Mina Kypfer, widow
of John Albert Kypfer, conveyed to St. Martiné Church Soclety
greater part known as lot 17 in Neighborsville and containing
7 acres), to the Comal County Rural High School Yistrict (now
known as the Comal Independent School District). It was writ-
ten 1In the deed at that time that should the school district

no longer use it for school purposes, the property and building
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would revert to €omal County for recreational purposes. The
school district utilized the rock building as classrooms and
later as a music room until 1975 when becausé of additional
schools being buillt elsewhere in the district, it would no
longer be needed for classroom space. It was then that the
Conservation Society of New Braunfels requested that they be
deeded the property so as to preserve it for its historical sig-
nificance. Because of the reversion clause written into the
deed originally, the school district had to deed the property
to Comal County;and then the county in turn deedait to the
Conservation Soclety. This transaction was finalized June 23,
1575.

In 1870, the people of the communities decided that they
needed a building other than the church to conduct classes 1in,
so they decided to bulld a spacious and comfortable school
building of native limestone. (The year 1870 1is carved into the
limestone above the entrance and is still visible. Also, the
church records now kept at First Frotestant Church in New Braun-
fels verify date as being 1870. Much additional information
regarding the school i1s not known because one volume of the church
records 1is lost and covered the period in which the school was
built).

The congregation had the school bullt for the sum of

$2,000.00. The contractors and/or stone mason are not known.



On August 26, 1871, thirty-one people met and pledged to pay
$40.00 in coin to cover the balance due on the school building.

The structure was one room, approximately 20 x 30 feet.
There was no original porch, the one which now exists was added
later. There was no fireplace, as wood stoves were used. It
was natural to use limestone for the exterlor bzscause 1t was so
prevalent in the area. The roof is corrugated sheet metal.

The construction of the school 1s thick limestone walls
(approximately 18* thick) which was acquired locally. The
interior walls are plastered. The ceiling and floor are planks.
The entrance ié double handmade frame and panel pine doors.

The windows are six over six construction with wide window sills.

This i1s not a family residence and no alterations have been
made to the building except for the addition of the exterior porch.
The bullding has never been moved.

The bullding is in excellent condition. The New Braunfels
Conservation Society is responsible for its upkeep and after res-
toration to a one room school is complete, it will be dedicated
to the early schools of Comal County as a museum. Memo%@ilia and
artifacts relating to the history of the first Comal County
schools will be on display for the public to view,.

Photogfaphs are enclosed. No historic photographs are
available, however, the bullding has not changed except for the

addition of the porch.



<

As was stated 1n paragraph one, the building was the
property of the St. Martins congregation and their successors
until 1958, and up until May 1975 was the property of the Comal
Independent School District (previously the Comal County Rural
High School District). During these years, 1870 to 1975, the
building was used for school purposes serving the many children
who first attended school on the east side of the Guadalupe
River in Comal County.

Because of the fact that the building is no longer needed
for educational purposes, its historical significance cannot be
overlooked to become a stagnant storeroom, or even worse, razed.
Due to tpis. the Conservation Society hopes to preserve it for
égﬁggé¥¥é{;éo that future generations may be able to look back
and hopefully appreciate the dedication their forefathers held
for the future in educating their chlildren the best way they
knew how. Also, it is an excellent example of the form: of

architeecture our forefathers employed.
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Fall of Weathercock Recalls
ighborsuvill
o\
: Early Days of Neighborsvilie
Is By Oscar Haas A s
L Editor Roger Nuhn's recent ek | ¢ i
“Shots at Random’’ column it - : .
Vi deploring the disappearance of f ’
R the weathercock from the tower ]
Iv of the St. Martin’s Lutheran Gl R i
a Church building at Hortontown
et caused a search for a picture of
J. that tower and its vane.
a The picture, made in July 1968,
L was given to the writer by Mr.
H G.M. Thompson of San Antonio, & 2
C relative by marriage of the {
w Johannes Mueller (Mueller '
ar Hannes) family who were in ;
a business in New Braunfels during
K. the era of oxen-teams. )
B A picture showing four yokes of :
Fl oxen with wagon parked next to f
ac two saddled horses at a hitching- :
ac stand in front of the Mueller two-
Fr  storey business and residence
& building on San Antonio Street
liv  and Main Plaza, now the site of
an the United Gas Building, can be
Kr.  seen on Page 315, HISTORY OF

Fit NEW BRAUNFELS AND
Voi COMAL COUNTY, TEXAS.
Lu The always interesting story of
Eil  Hortontown (Neighborsville) can
I be, and has been repeatedly told
unt in a number of ways, but can
En  always stand another repeat.
~wil  Although just across the
Ka  Guadalupe River from New
ag Braunfels, it was a community
. sa center in itself, and had a church,
th school, post office, stores, stage
. stop, blacksmiths, carpenters, a
p hall, a cemetery, a grist-mill
nc powered by wind, and well-
P ordered farms. : \
1 Among ine first o tell -aboul
th  Hortontown was Dr. Ferdinand e T
Roemer in his ROEMER’S T e e e
TEXAS, 1845 to 1847, translated Bullet-Riddled Weathercock . . .

ﬁzr:ue:-hi%gf r(t:gs;ri:gt ?9?; a;g ... of St. Martin’s Church finally has succumbed,
The Texian Press, Waco but not, .apparently, to the bullets which left him
As a geolo gist’ Roemer ac- well-ventilated. The weathercock, which gave the
companied John ’0 | church its affectionate nickname, “the Rooster
on horseback into the Comanche Church,” was seen leaning precariously for a {ew
Indian country on the San Saba days and then apparently broke off at its fastenin,

d saw F e)&ericksbur bein at the tip of the steeple and fell to the ground.
ancuss r Sburg 8 Fortunately, it was recovered, and the St. Paul’s
fonnded. The following quote 1s T,utheran Church congrecation plans to restore it to

saoepdB B EEEO

s  am e e ——————— ]
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